
The Retirement Board will provide reasonable accommodations for 
persons with disabilities planning to attend Board meetings who 
contact the Retirement Office at least 24 hours before a meeting. 

AGENDA 

RETIREMENT BOARD MEETING 

REGULAR MEETING 
August 8, 2018 

9:00 a.m. 

Retirement Board Conference Room 
The Willows Office Park 

1355 Willow Way, Suite 221 
Concord, California 

THE RETIREMENT BOARD MAY DISCUSS AND TAKE ACTION ON THE FOLLOWING: 

1. Pledge of Allegiance.

2. Recognition of Karen Levy for 10 years of service.

3. Accept comments from the public.

4. Approve minutes from the July 11, 2018 meeting.

5. Routine items for August 8, 2018:

a. Approve certifications of membership.
b. Approve service and disability allowances.
c. Accept disability applications and authorize subpoenas as required.
d. Approve death benefits.
e. Accept travel report.
f. Accept Asset Allocation Report.
g. Accept Liquidity Report.

CLOSED SESSION 

6. The Board will go into closed session pursuant to Govt. Code Section 54957 to consider
recommendations from the Medical Advisor and/or staff regarding the following disability
retirement applications:

Member Type Sought Recommendation 
a. Donald Bianucci Non-Service Connected Non-Service Connected 
b. Charles McPherson Non-Service Connected Non-Service Connected 
c. David Atkin Service Connected Service Connected 
d. Leslie Grundler Service Connected Service Connected 
e. Natalie Probert-Kurtz Service Connected Service Connected 



 

   
. 

The Retirement Board will provide reasonable accommodations for 
persons with disabilities planning to attend Board meetings who 
contact the Retirement Office at least 24 hours before a meeting. 

7.  CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS  
(Government Code Section 54957.6)  
 
Agency designated representative:  
Gail Strohl, Chief Executive Officer  
 
Unrepresented Employees: All CCCERA unrepresented positions 
 

8.  The Board will continue in closed session pursuant to Govt. Code Section 54956.9(d)(1) to 
confer with legal counsel regarding pending litigation: 
 

a. Debra Fernandez v. CCCERA, et al., Contra Costa County Superior Court, Case No.  
CIVMSN17-036 

b. Nidia Santos v. CCCERA, et al., Contra Costa County Superior Court, Case No.  
CIVMSN16-2334 
 

OPEN SESSION 
 

9.  Presentation of year to date 2018 CCCERA budget vs. actual expenses report.   
 

10.  Consider authorizing the attendance of Board:          
a. CRCEA 2018 Fall Conference, October 15-17, 2018, San Rafael, CA. 
b. Connectivity 2018, William Blair, October 17-18, 2018, Chicago, IL. 
c. CII 2018 Fall Conference, The Council of Institutional Investors, October 24-26, 

2018, Boston, MA. (Note: Conflict with Meeting) 
d. Trustees’ Round Table, California Association of Public Retirement Systems, 

October 26, 2018, Glendale, CA. 
e. 2018 Public Safety Conference, National Conference on Public Employee 

Retirement Systems, October 28-31, 2018, Las Vegas, NV. 
 

11.  Miscellaneous 
a. Staff Report     
b. Outside Professionals’ Report  
c. Trustees’ comments 

 



 
Meeting Date 
08/08/18 

Agenda Item 
#4 

 

 

 
MINUTES 

 
RETIREMENT BOARD MEETING MINUTES 

 
REGULAR MEETING 

July 11, 2018 
9:00 a.m. 

 

Retirement Board Conference Room 
The Willows Office Park 

1355 Willow Way, Suite 221 
Concord, California 

 
 
Present: Candace Andersen, Scott Gordon, Jerry Holcombe, Louie Kroll, Jay Kwon, David 

MacDonald, John Phillips, William Pigeon, Gabe Rodrigues, Todd Smithey, Jerry Telles 
and Russell Watts 

 
Absent: None 
 
Staff: Gail Strohl, Chief Executive Officer; Christina Dunn, Deputy Chief Executive Officer; 

Timothy Price, Chief Investment Officer; Karen Levy, General Counsel; Wrally 
Dutkiewicz, Compliance Officer; Anne Sommers, Administrative/HR Manager; Henry 
Gudino, Accounting Manager; Tim Hoppe, Retirement Services Manager; and Colin 
Bishop, Member Services Manager 

 
Outside Professional Support: Representing: 

Joe Wiley  Wiley Price & Radulovich LLP 
 

 
1. Pledge of Allegiance 

The Board, staff and audience joined in the Pledge of Allegiance. 

2. Recognition of Chih-chi Chu for 10 years of service and Brianne Wilkins for 10 years of 
service 

Smithey recognized and congratulated Chih-chi Chu for his 10 years of service and Brianne Wilkins 
for her 10 years of service. 

3. Accept comments from the public 

No member of the public offered comment. 
 

4. Approval of Minutes 

It was M/S/C to approve the minutes of the June 13, 2018 meeting. (Yes: Andersen, Gordon, 
Holcombe, MacDonald, Phillips, Rodrigues, Smithey, Telles and Watts) 



Page 2 
July 11, 2018 

 

 

5. Board Reorganization 

It was M/S/C to nominate Todd Smithey as Board Chairperson, Scott Gordon as Board Vice-
Chairperson and David MacDonald as Board Secretary. (Yes: Andersen, Gordon, Holcombe, 
MacDonald, Phillips, Rodrigues, Smithey, Telles and Watts) 

6. Routine Items 

It was M/S/C to approve the routine items of the July 11, 2018 meeting. (Yes:  Andersen, Gordon, 
Holcombe, MacDonald, Phillips, Rodrigues, Smithey, Telles and Watts) 

CLOSED SESSION 
The Board moved into closed session pursuant to Govt. Code Section 54957 and 54957.6. 
 

The Board moved into open session. 
 
7. It was M/S/C to accept the Medical Advisor’s recommendation and grant the following disability 

benefits: 

a. Jeanette Clemons – Non-Service Connected (Yes: Andersen, Gordon, Holcombe, MacDonald, 
Phillips, Rodrigues, Smithey, Telles and Watts) 

b. Colleen Farley – Non-Service Connected  (Yes: Andersen, Gordon, Holcombe, MacDonald, 
Phillips, Rodrigues, Smithey, Telles and Watts) 

c. Kim Haramaki – Service Connected (Yes: Andersen, Gordon, Holcombe, MacDonald, Phillips, 
Rodrigues, Smithey, Telles and Watts) 

d. Mark Purnell – Service Connected  (Yes: Andersen, Gordon, Holcombe, MacDonald, Phillips, 
Rodrigues, Smithey, Telles and Watts) 

 

Pigeon was present for subsequent discussion and voting. 

e. Michael Sumrall – Service Connected (Yes: Andersen, Holcombe, MacDonald, Phillips, Pigeon, 
Smithey, Telles and Watts. No: Gordon) 

 
8. There was no reportable action related to Govt. Code Section 54957. 

9. There was no reportable action related to Govt. Code Section 54957.6. 

10. There was no reportable action related to Govt. Code Section 54957.6. 

It was the consensus of the Board to move to Item 12. 

Andersen and Holcombe were no longer present for subsequent discussion and voting. 

12. Consider and take possible action to authorize the CEO to continue the engagement of Ice 
Miller, LLC as tax counsel and to continue the engagement of Reed Smith, LLC to include tax 
matters 

Strohl reviewed the background on issuing the RFP for tax counsel noting there was an evaluation 
committee that interviewed the two firms and conducted reference checks.   

Ice Miller, LLC – Rob Goss and Audra Ferguson-Allen 

Goss and Ferguson-Allen reviewed their backgrounds with the firm as well as the firms experience 
with other governmental public pension plan clients.  Ferguson-Allen reported they have been tax 



Page 3 
July 11, 2018 

 

 

counsel for CCCERA for 10 years and serve as tax counsel for other CERL entities in addition to other 
California clients. 

Reed Smith, LLC – Don Wellington and Jenni Krengel 

Wellington and Krengel reviewed their backgrounds and experience working with other governmental 
public pension plan clients including other 1937 Act plans. 

It was M/S/C to authorize the CEO to continue the engagement of Ice Miller, LLC as tax counsel and 
to continue the engagement of Reed Smith, LLC to include tax matters.  (Yes: Gordon, Kwon, 
MacDonald, Phillips, Pigeon, Smithey, Telles and Watts) 

13. Consider and take possible action to amend CCCERA’s Tax Compliance Policies – Ice Miller, 
LLC 

Levy reviewed the recommended changes to CCCERA’s Policy on Internal Revenue Code 
Compliance and CCCERA’s Policy on Internal Revenue Code Section 415 Compliance noting Ice 
Miller, LLC assisted in updating the policies. 
 
Ferguson-Allen commented that most of the changes are to provide clarification and recommended the 
policies be reviewed every 3 years. 
 
It was M/S/C to amend the Policy on Internal Revenue Code Compliance and Policy on Internal 
Revenue Code Section 415 Compliance. (Yes: Gordon, Kroll, Kwon, MacDonald, Phillips, Pigeon, 
Smithey and Watts) 

 
Telles was no longer present for subsequent discussion and voting. 

 
14. Consider and take possible action to approve the side letter agreement between CCCERA and 

AFSCME, Local 2700, regarding implementation of the compensation and classification studies 

It was M/S/C to approve the side letter agreement between CCCERA and AFSCME, Local 2700, 
regarding the implementation of the compensation and classification studies. (Yes: Gordon, Kroll, 
Kwon, MacDonald, Phillips, Pigeon, Smithey and Watts) 

15. Consider and take possible action to adopt the CCCERA Position Pay Schedules effective July 1, 
2018, which reflect the salary range changes associated with the classification adjustments 

It was M/S/C to adopt the CCCERA Position Pay Schedules effective July 1, 2018, which reflect the 
changes associated with the classification adjustments. (Yes: Gordon, Kroll, Kwon, MacDonald, 
Phillips, Pigeon, Smithey and Watts) 

16. Report from Audit Committee Chair 

Phillips reported on the recent audit committee meeting noting there were presentations on the San 
Ramon Valley Fire Protection District (SRVFPD) employer audit and the process on required 
minimum distributions for deferred members reaching 70 ½ years old. He stated the audit committee 
completed an evaluation of the external auditors, Brown Armstrong, and that it was a favorable 
evaluation.  

17. Consider authorizing the attendance of Board: 

a. It was M/S/C to authorize the attendance of 4 Board members at the 2018 Public Funds Forum, 
Value Edge Advisors, September 4-6, 2018, Laguna Beach, CA. (Yes: Gordon, Kroll, Kwon, 
MacDonald, Phillips, Pigeon, Smithey and Watts) 



Page 4 
July 11, 2018 

 

 

b. It was M/S/C to authorize the attendance of 4 Board members at the 64th Annual Employee 
Benefits Conference, International Foundation of Employee Benefit Plans, October 14-17, 2018, 
New Orleans, LA. (Yes, Gordon, Kroll, Kwon, MacDonald, Phillips, Pigeon, Smithey and Watts) 
 

18. Miscellaneous 

(a) Staff Report – 
 

None 
 

(b) Outside Professionals’ Report – 
 

None 
 

(c) Trustees’ comments – 
 

Smithey thanked the Board for selecting him to continue as the Board Chair.  He reported that at 
the next board meeting, the composition of the audit committee for the next 12 months would be 
selected and any Board member who is interested in serving on the audit committee or continuing 
to serve, should contact him by e-mail.  
 

CLOSED SESSION 
The Board moved into closed session pursuant to Govt. Code Section 54956.9(d)(1). 
 
The Board moved into open session. 
  
11. There was no reportable action related to Govt. Code Section 54956.9(d)(1). 
 

 
It was M/S/C to adjourn the meeting.  (Yes: Gordon, Kroll, Kwon, MacDonald, Phillips, Pigeon, Smithey 
and Watts) 
 
 
 
 
             
Todd Smithey, Chairman    David MacDonald, Secretary 
 
 













CCCERA Board of Trustees 

Training & Educational Conferences Expenses Paid During

Quarter 2 2018 (Apr - Jun)

Trustee: Conference Name/Purpose: Location: Dates: Total

Candace Andersen NONE $0.00

Scott Gordon NCPERS 2018 Annual Conference New York, NY May 13-16, 2018 $1,000.00

-  

Jerry Holcombe NONE $0.00

Louie Kroll NASP 8TH Annual Conference Los Angeles, CA Mar 28-29, 2018 $459.37

II Public Funds Roundtable Los Angeles, CA Apr 25-27, 2018 $1,053.38

CALAPRS Trustees' Roundtable Oakland, CA Jun 8, 2018 $203.22

Jay Kwon CALAPRS Trustees' Roundable Oakland, CA Jun 8, 2018 $164.43

David J. MacDonald II Public Funds Roundtable Los Angeles, CA Apr 25-27, 2018 $1,123.34

SACRS Spring Conference 2018 Anaheim, CA May 15-18, 2018 $1,269.52

-  

John Phillips SACRS Spring Conference 2018 Anaheim, CA May 15-18, 2018 $1,313.11

William Pigeon NONE $0.00

Gabriel Rodrigues DFA 2018 Conference Austin, TX Apr 22-25, 2018 $1,540.59

SACRS Spring Conference 2018 Anaheim, CA May 15-18, 2018 $1,268.26

Todd Smithey SACRS Spring Conf 2018 Anaheim, CA May 15-16, 2018 $731.47

NASP 29th Annual Conference Houston, TX Jun 4-6, 2018 $3,224.27

Jerry Telles 2018 CRCEA Spring Conference Santa Barbara,CA Apr 15-17, 2018 $885.34

Russell V. Watts NONE $0.00



Contra Costa County Employees' Retirement Association

Asset Allocation as of June 30, 2018

Market Percentage Phase 3 Target Phase 3 Long Term Long Term

Liquidity Value of Total Fund Percentage Over/(Under) Target Over/(Under)

Insight 697,455,828 8.5% 12.0% -3.5%

Sit 482,786,680 5.9% 5.5% 0.4%

Dimensional Fund Advisors 329,410,558 4.0% 5.5% -1.5%

Total Liquidity 1,509,653,066     18.3% 23.0% -4.7% 23.0% -4.7%

Growth

Domestic Equity

Boston Partners 395,079,843 4.8% 3.0% 1.8%

Jackson Square 423,687,946 5.1% 3.0% 2.1%

BlackRock Index Fund 123,396,474 1.5% 1.0% 0.5%

Emerald Advisors 310,233,552 3.8% 2.0% 1.8%

Ceredex 273,911,563 3.3% 2.0% 1.3%

Total Domestic Equity 1,526,309,378 18.5% 11.0% 7.5% 5.0% 13.5%

Global & International Equity

Pyrford (BMO) 443,155,210 5.4% 5.5% -0.1%

William Blair 490,712,598 5.9% 5.5% 0.4%

First Eagle 360,330,728 4.4% 4.0% 0.4%

Artisan Global Opportunities 397,147,350 4.8% 4.0% 0.8%

PIMCO/RAE Emerging Markets 344,791,961 4.2% 4.0% 0.2%

TT Emerging Markets 323,528,055 3.9% 4.0% -0.1%

Total Global & International Equity 2,359,665,903 28.6% 27.0% 1.6% 24.0% 4.6%

Private Equity 856,237,000 10.4% 10.0% 0.4% 11.0% -0.6%

Private Credit 235,606,000 2.9% 4.0% -1.1% 12.0% -9.1%

Real Estate - Value Add 159,437,000 1.9% 5.0% -3.1% 5.0% -3.1%

Real Estate - Opportunistic & Distressed 411,930,000 5.0% 4.0% 1.0% 4.0% 1.0%

Real Estate - REIT (Adelante) 67,542,607 0.8% 1.0% -0.2% 1.0% -0.2%

High Yield (Allianz) 346,773,913 4.2% 2.0% 2.2% 0.0% 4.2%

Risk Parity 0 0.0% 5.0% -5.0% 5.0% -5.0%

Total Other Growth Assets 2,077,526,520 25.2% 31.0% -5.8% 38.0% -12.8%

Total Growth Assets 5,963,501,801 72.3% 69.0% 3.3% 67.0% 5.3%

Risk Diversifying 

AFL-CIO 317,519,384 3.8% 3.5% 0.3% 3.0% 0.8%

Diversifying Strategies (Wellington) 187,389,994 2.3% 4.5% -2.2% 7.0% -4.7%

Total Risk Diversifying 504,909,379 6.1% 8.0% -1.9% 10.0% -3.9%

Cash and Overlay

Overlay (Parametric) 44,967,111 0.5% 0.5%

Cash 229,721,551 2.8% 2.8%

Total Cash and Overlay 274,688,663 3.3% 0.0% 3.3% 0.0% 3.3%

Total Fund 8,252,752,908     100% 100% 0% 100% 0%

*Phase 3 targets and ranges reflect Phase 3 asset allocation targets accepted by the Board on June 27, 2018 (BOR Resolution 2018-2)

0% - 10%

Range

16% - 28%

Range

60% - 80%

Range



P
ri

va
te

 M
ar

ke
t 

In
ve

st
m

e
n

ts

A
s 

o
f 

Ju
n

e
 3

0
, 2

0
1

8

R
EA

L 
ES

TA
TE

 -
 V

al
u

e 
A

d
d

In
ce

p
ti

o
n

Ta
rg

et
# 

o
f

D
is

cr
e

ti
o

n
N

e
w

 T
ar

ge
t

Fu
n

d
in

g
M

ar
ke

t
%

 o
f

O
u

ts
ta

n
d

in
g

D
at

e
Te

rm
in

at
io

n
Ex

te
n

si
o

n
b

y 
G

P
/L

P
Te

rm
in

at
io

n
C

o
m

m
it

m
en

t
V

al
u

e
To

ta
l A

ss
e

t
C

o
m

m
it

m
en

t

  I
n

ve
sc

o
 IR

EF
 II

0
5/

3
0

/0
7

1
2/

3
1

/1
5

in
 f

u
ll 

liq
.

8
5,

0
00

,0
00

4
44

,0
0

0
0

.0
1%

  I
n

ve
sc

o
 IR

EF
 II

I
0

8/
0

1
/1

3
0

8/
0

1
/2

0
3

5,
0

00
,0

00
1

3,
2

82
,0

00
0

.1
6%

  I
n

ve
sc

o
 IR

EF
 IV

1
2/

0
1

/1
4

1
2/

0
1

/2
1

3
5,

0
00

,0
00

1
8,

5
57

,0
00

0
.2

2%
3

,1
9

0,
0

0
0 

  L
o

n
g 

W
h

ar
f 

FR
EG

 IV
0

8/
1

4
/1

3
0

9/
3

0
/2

1
2

5,
0

00
,0

00
1

2,
3

04
,0

00
0

.1
5%

  L
o

n
g 

W
h

ar
f 

FR
EG

 V
1

0/
3

1
/1

6
0

9/
3

0
/2

4
5

0,
0

00
,0

00
3

6,
1

87
,0

00
0

.4
4%

1
0,

6
89

,0
00

 

  L
aS

al
le

 In
co

m
e 

&
 G

ro
w

th
 F

u
n

d
 V

I
0

1/
3

1
/1

2
0

1/
3

1
/1

9
7

5,
0

00
,0

00
3

1,
0

47
,0

00
0

.3
8%

3
,9

4
6,

0
0

0 

  L
aS

al
le

 In
co

m
e 

&
 G

ro
w

th
 F

u
n

d
 V

II
1

0/
3

1
/1

6
0

9/
3

0
/2

4
7

5,
0

00
,0

00
4

7,
6

16
,0

00
0

.5
8%

2
7,

4
49

,0
00

 

5
0

5
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
1

5
9

,4
3

7
,0

0
0

1
.9

3
%

4
5

,2
7

4
,0

0
0

 

O
u

ts
ta

n
d

in
g 

C
o

m
m

it
m

e
n

ts
4

5
,2

7
4

,0
0

0
 

To
ta

l
2

0
4

,7
1

1
,0

0
0

R
EA

L 
ES

TA
TE

 -
O

p
p

o
rt

u
n

is
ti

c 
&

 D
is

tr
e

ss
ed

In
ce

p
ti

o
n

Ta
rg

et
# 

o
f

D
is

cr
e

ti
o

n
N

e
w

 T
ar

ge
t

Fu
n

d
in

g
M

ar
ke

t
%

 o
f

O
u

ts
ta

n
d

in
g

D
at

e
Te

rm
in

at
io

n
Ex

te
n

si
o

n
b

y 
G

P
/L

P
Te

rm
in

at
io

n
C

o
m

m
it

m
en

t
V

al
u

e
To

ta
l A

ss
e

t
C

o
m

m
it

m
en

t

  D
LJ

 R
ea

l E
st

at
e 

C
ap

it
al

 P
ar

tn
er

s,
 L

.P
. I

II
 

0
6/

3
0

/0
5

0
6/

3
0

/1
4

in
 f

u
ll 

liq
.

7
5,

0
00

,0
00

2
8,

1
67

,0
00

0
.3

4%

  D
LJ

 R
ea

l E
st

at
e 

C
ap

it
al

 P
ar

tn
er

s,
 L

.P
. I

V
 

1
2/

3
1

/0
7

0
9/

3
0

/1
8

1
00

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

8
3,

6
94

,0
00

1
.0

1%

  D
LJ

 R
ea

l E
st

at
e 

C
ap

it
al

 P
ar

tn
er

s,
 L

.P
. V

 
0

7/
3

1
/1

3
1

2/
3

1
/2

2
7

5,
0

00
,0

00
2

0,
4

19
,0

00
0

.2
5%

3
6,

0
86

,0
00

  O
ak

tr
ee

 R
ea

l E
st

at
e 

O
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

ie
s 

Fu
n

d
 V

0
2/

0
1

/1
1

0
2/

0
1

/2
1

5
0,

0
00

,0
00

6
,5

2
0,

0
0

0
0

.0
8%

  O
ak

tr
ee

 R
ea

l E
st

at
e 

O
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

ie
s 

Fu
n

d
 V

I
0

9/
3

0
/1

3
0

9/
3

0
/2

0
8

0,
0

00
,0

00
4

3,
7

77
,0

00
0

.5
3%

5
,6

8
2,

0
0

0 

  O
ak

tr
ee

 R
ea

l E
st

at
e 

O
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

ie
s 

Fu
n

d
 V

II
0

2/
2

8
/1

5
0

2/
2

8
/2

3
6

5,
0

00
,0

00
2

0,
3

60
,0

00
0

.2
5%

4
0,

7
55

,0
00

 

  S
ig

u
le

r 
G

u
ff

 D
is

tr
es

se
d

 R
ea

l E
st

at
e 

O
p

p
. F

u
n

d
0

7/
3

0
/1

1
0

7/
3

0
/2

2
7

5,
0

00
,0

00
5

1,
1

87
,0

00
0

.6
2%

7
,3

6
2,

0
0

0 

  S
ig

u
le

r 
G

u
ff

 D
is

tr
es

se
d

 R
ea

l E
st

at
e 

O
p

p
. F

u
n

d
 II

0
8/

3
1

/1
3

0
8/

3
1

/2
5

7
0,

0
00

,0
00

5
0,

2
45

,0
00

0
.6

1%
2

1,
0

02
,0

00
 

  S
ig

u
le

r 
G

u
ff

 D
is

tr
es

se
d

 R
ea

l E
st

at
e 

O
p

p
.  

II 
C

o
-I

n
v

0
1/

3
1

/1
6

1
0/

3
1

/2
5

2
5,

0
00

,0
00

2
0,

4
96

,0
00

0
.2

5%
5

,2
1

7,
0

0
0 

  P
au

ls
o

n
 R

ea
l E

st
at

e 
Fu

n
d

 II
1

1/
1

0
/1

3
1

1/
1

0
/2

0
2

0,
0

00
,0

00
2

2,
4

24
,0

00
0

.2
7%

  A
n

ge
lo

 G
o

rd
o

n
 R

ea
lt

y 
Fu

n
d

 V
III

1
2/

3
1

/1
1

1
2/

3
1

/1
8

8
0,

0
00

,0
00

2
7,

7
91

,0
00

0
.3

4%

  A
n

ge
lo

 G
o

rd
o

n
 R

ea
lt

y 
Fu

n
d

 IX
1

0/
1

0
/1

4
1

0/
1

0
/2

2
6

5,
0

00
,0

00
3

6,
8

50
,0

00
0

.4
5%

2
7,

5
16

,0
00

 

7
8

0
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
4

1
1

,9
3

0
,0

0
0

4
.9

9
%

1
4

3
,6

2
0

,0
0

0
 

O
u

ts
ta

n
d

in
g 

C
o

m
m

it
m

e
n

ts
1

4
3

,6
2

0
,0

0
0

 

To
ta

l
5

5
5

,5
5

0
,0

0
0

P
R

IV
A

TE
 C

R
ED

IT
In

ce
p

ti
o

n
Ta

rg
et

# 
o

f
D

is
cr

e
ti

o
n

N
e

w
 T

ar
ge

t
Fu

n
d

in
g

M
ar

ke
t

%
 o

f
O

u
ts

ta
n

d
in

g

D
at

e
Te

rm
in

at
io

n
Ex

te
n

si
o

n
b

y 
G

P
/L

P
Te

rm
in

at
io

n
C

o
m

m
it

m
en

t
V

al
u

e
To

ta
l A

ss
e

t
C

o
m

m
it

m
en

t

  T
o

rc
h

lig
h

t 
D

eb
t 

O
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

y 
Fu

n
d

 II
0

9/
2

8
/0

6
0

9/
3

0
/1

6
in

 f
u

ll 
liq

.
1

28
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
1

6,
8

20
,0

00
0

.2
0%

  T
o

rc
h

lig
h

t 
D

eb
t 

O
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

y 
Fu

n
d

 II
I

0
9/

3
0

/0
8

0
6/

3
0

/1
6

2
n

d
 1

 Y
R

LP
0

6/
3

0
/1

8
7

5,
0

00
,0

00
1

,2
7

3,
0

0
0

0
.0

2%

  T
o

rc
h

lig
h

t 
D

eb
t 

O
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

y 
Fu

n
d

 IV
0

8/
0

1
/1

2
0

8/
3

0
/2

0
6

0,
0

00
,0

00
3

4,
7

91
,0

00
0

.4
2%

  T
o

rc
h

lig
h

t 
D

eb
t 

O
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

y 
Fu

n
d

 V
1

2/
3

1
/1

4
0

9/
1

7
/2

2
7

5,
0

00
,0

00
4

8,
3

18
,0

00
0

.5
9%

3
6,

0
37

,0
00

 

  A
n

ge
lo

 G
o

rd
o

n
 E

n
er

gy
 C

re
d

it
 O

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
0

9/
1

0
/1

5
0

9/
1

0
/2

0
1

6,
5

00
,0

00
1

0,
0

60
,0

00
0

.1
2%

  C
C

C
ER

A
 S

te
p

St
o

n
e

1
2/

0
1

/1
7

1
1/

3
0

/2
7

4
00

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

1
24

,3
4

4
,0

0
0

1
.5

1%
2

75
,6

5
6

,0
0

0 

7
5

4
,5

0
0

,0
0

0
2

3
5

,6
0

6
,0

0
0

2
.8

5
%

3
1

1
,6

9
3

,0
0

0

O
u

ts
ta

n
d

in
g 

C
o

m
m

it
m

e
n

ts
3

1
1

,6
9

3
,0

0
0

To
ta

l
5

4
7

,2
9

9
,0

0
0



P
ri

va
te

 M
ar

ke
t 

In
ve

st
m

e
n

ts

A
s 

o
f 

Ju
n

e
 3

0
, 2

0
1

8

P
R

IV
A

TE
 E

Q
U

IT
Y

In
ce

p
ti

o
n

Ta
rg

et
# 

o
f

D
is

cr
e

ti
o

n
N

e
w

 T
ar

ge
t

Fu
n

d
in

g
M

ar
ke

t
%

 o
f

O
u

ts
ta

n
d

in
g

D
at

e
Te

rm
in

at
io

n
Ex

te
n

si
o

n
b

y 
G

P
/L

P
Te

rm
in

at
io

n
C

o
m

m
it

m
en

t
V

al
u

e
To

ta
l A

ss
e

t
C

o
m

m
it

m
e

n
t

  A
d

am
s 

St
re

e
t 

P
ar

tn
er

s
12

/2
2/

95
1

2/
22

/2
5

1
8

0
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
1

2
3

,1
7

9
,0

00
1.

49
%

71
,0

80
,0

00
 

  A
d

am
s 

St
re

e
t 

Se
co

n
d

ar
y 

II
12

/3
1/

08
1

2/
31

/2
0

3
0

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

9
,3

3
7

,0
00

0.
11

%
12

,6
37

,0
00

 

  A
d

am
s 

St
re

e
t 

Se
co

n
d

ar
y 

V
10

/3
1/

12
1

0/
31

/2
2

4
0

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

2
3

,0
8

7
,0

00
0.

28
%

15
,7

40
,0

00
 

  A
d

am
s 

St
re

e
t 

V
en

tu
re

 In
n

o
va

ti
o

n
 F

u
n

d
03

/0
9/

16
0

3/
09

/2
8

7
5

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

7
,1

6
3

,0
00

0.
09

%
64

,0
88

,0
00

 

  B
ay

 A
re

a 
Eq

u
it

y 
Fu

n
d

06
/1

4/
04

1
2/

31
/1

4
2

n
d

 2
 Y

R
LP

1
2

/3
1

/2
0

1
7

1
0

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

2
,9

6
5

,0
00

0.
04

%

  B
ay

 A
re

a 
Eq

u
it

y 
Fu

n
d

 II
2

/2
9/

09
1

2/
31

/1
9

1
0

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

8
,6

1
5

,0
00

0.
10

%

  C
ar

p
en

te
r 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

B
an

cF
u

n
d

10
/3

1/
09

1
0/

31
/1

9
3

0
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
4

,3
9

9
,0

00
0.

05
%

  E
IF

 U
SP

F 
I

11
/0

8/
02

1
1/

08
/1

5
in

 f
u

ll 
liq

.
LP

1
1

/0
8

/1
5

3
0

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

7
5

5
,0

00
0.

01
%

  E
IF

 U
SP

F 
II

06
/1

5/
05

0
6/

15
/1

5
3

rd
 1

 Y
R

LP
0

6
/1

5
/1

8
5

0
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
2

4
,6

6
1

,0
00

0.
30

%

  E
IF

 U
SP

F 
III

02
/2

8/
07

0
2/

28
/1

7
1

st
 1

 Y
R

LP
0

2
/2

8
/1

8
6

5
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
2

9
,9

2
3

,0
00

0.
36

%

  E
IF

 U
SP

F 
IV

06
/2

8/
10

0
6/

28
/2

0
5

0
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
4

8
,3

5
0

,0
00

0.
59

%

  O
ak

tr
ee

 P
ri

va
te

 In
ve

st
m

en
t 

Fu
n

d
 2

00
9

02
/2

8/
10

1
2/

15
/1

9
4

0
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
8

,6
3

3
,0

00
0.

24
%

  O
ce

an
 A

ve
n

u
e 

Fu
n

d
 II

05
/0

7/
14

0
5/

07
/2

4
3

0
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
2

3
,8

1
3

,0
00

0.
29

%
4,

58
4,

00
0

   
   

   
   

   
 

  O
ce

an
 A

ve
n

u
e 

Fu
n

d
 II

I
12

/0
9/

15
1

2/
09

/2
5

5
0

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

1
9

,5
7

9
,0

00
0.

07
%

34
,5

00
,0

00
   

   
   

   
  

  P
al

ad
in

 II
I

08
/1

5/
08

0
8/

15
/1

8
2

5
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
1

8
,4

1
3

,0
00

0.
22

%

  P
at

h
w

ay
11

/0
9/

98
0

5/
31

/2
1

1
2

5
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
2

0
,4

0
0

,0
00

0.
25

%
14

,2
46

,0
00

 

  P
at

h
w

ay
 2

00
8

12
/2

6/
08

1
2/

26
/2

3
3

0
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
1

9
,0

8
5

,0
00

0.
23

%
5,

73
8,

00
0 

  P
at

h
w

ay
 6

05
/2

4/
11

0
5/

24
/2

6
4

0
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
3

1
,0

7
1

,0
00

0.
38

%
10

,2
01

,0
00

 

  P
at

h
w

ay
 7

02
/0

7/
13

0
2/

07
/2

3
7

0
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
5

1
,7

6
7

,0
00

0.
63

%
18

,0
21

,0
00

 

  P
at

h
w

ay
 8

11
/2

3/
15

1
1/

23
/2

5
5

0
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
2

3
,9

7
1

,0
00

0.
29

%
28

,7
70

,0
00

 

  S
ig

u
le

r 
G

u
ff

 C
C

C
ER

A
 O

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
06

/0
3/

14
0

5/
31

/2
5

2
0

0
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
1

4
3

,7
3

9
,0

00
1.

74
%

68
,5

00
,0

00
 

  S
ig

u
le

r 
G

u
ff

 S
ec

o
n

d
ar

y 
O

p
p

o
rt

u
n

it
ie

s
12

/3
1/

16
1

2/
31

/2
6

5
0

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

3
3

,8
2

4
,0

00
0.

41
%

16
,0

69
,0

00
 

R
e

al
 A

ss
et

s

  A
et

h
er

 II
I &

 II
I S

u
rp

lu
s

11
/3

0/
13

1
1/

30
/2

0
7

5
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
8

1
,0

6
4

,0
00

0.
98

%
12

,3
78

,0
00

   
   

   
   

  

  A
et

h
er

 IV
01

/0
1/

16
0

1/
01

/2
8

5
0

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

1
7

,7
9

3
,0

00
0.

22
%

30
,6

56
,0

00
   

   
   

   
  

  A
R

ES
 E

IF
 V

 
09

/0
9/

15
1

1/
19

/2
5

5
0

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

3
0

,4
9

5
,0

00
0.

37
%

18
,3

71
,0

00
 

  C
o

m
m

o
n

fu
n

d
 C

ap
it

al
 N

at
u

ra
l R

es
o

u
rc

es
 IX

06
/3

0/
13

0
6/

30
/2

0
5

0
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
4

1
,5

4
7

,0
00

0.
50

%
10

,9
30

,0
00

   
   

   
   

  

  W
as

te
w

at
er

 O
p

p
o

rt
u

n
it

y 
Fu

n
d

12
/3

1/
15

1
1/

30
/2

2
2

5
,0

0
0

,0
0

0
8

,6
0

9
,0

00
0.

10
%

16
,2

09
,0

00
   

   
   

   
  

1
,5

4
5

,0
0

0
,0

0
0

8
5

6
,2

3
7

,0
0

0
10

.3
4%

4
5

2
,7

1
8

,0
0

0

O
u

ts
ta

n
d

in
g 

C
o

m
m

it
m

en
ts

4
5

2
,7

1
8

,0
0

0

To
ta

l
1

,3
0

8
,9

5
5

,0
0

0

M
ar

ke
t 

va
lu

e 
co

lu
m

n
 is

 t
h

e 
la

te
st

 e
n

d
in

g 
q

u
ar

te
r 

p
lu

s 
an

y 
ad

d
it

io
n

al
 c

ap
it

al
 c

al
ls

 a
ft

er
 t

h
e 

en
d

in
g 

q
u

ar
te

r.

Th
e 

Ta
rg

et
 T

er
m

in
at

io
n

 c
o

lu
m

n
 is

 t
h

e 
b

eg
in

n
in

g 
o

f 
liq

u
id

at
io

n
 o

f 
th

e 
fu

n
d

, h
o

w
ev

er
, s

o
m

e 
fu

n
d

s 
m

ay
 b

e 
ex

te
n

d
ed

 f
o

r 
an

 a
d

d
it

io
n

al
 t

w
o

 o
r 

th
re

e 
ye

ar
s.

 

 



Contra Costa County Employees’ Retirement Association 

Liquidity Report – June 2018 

June 2018 Performance 

Cash Flow Coverage Ratio 

Benefit Cash Flow Projected by Model $38,000,000 

Liquidity Sub-Portfolio Cash Flow $38,000,000 100% 

Actual Benefits Paid $38,452,868 99% 

Next Month’s Projected Benefit Payment $38,000,000 

Monthly Manager Positioning – June 2018 

Beginning Market 
Value 

Liquidity Program 
Cash Flow 

Market Value 
Change/Other 

Activity 

Ending      
Market Value 

Sit $483,734,622 ($1,000,000) $52,058 $482,786,680 

DFA $342,746,913 ($13,000,000) ($336,355) $329,410,558 

Insight $720,896,787 ($24,000,000) $559,041 $697,455,828 

Liquidity $1,547,378,322 ($38,000,000) $274,744 $1,509,653,066 

Cash $299,004,247 ($452,868) ($68,829,828) $229,721,551 

Liquidity + Cash $1,846,382,569 ($38,452,868) ($68,555,084) $1,739,374,617 

Functional Roles 

Manager Portfolio Characteristics Liquidity Contribution 
Sit High quality portfolio of small balance, 

government guaranteed mortgages 
with higher yields. 

Pays out net income on monthly basis.  

DFA High quality, short duration portfolio of 
liquid, low volatility characteristics. 

Pays out a pre-determined monthly amount.  DFA 
sources liquidity from across their portfolio. 

Insight Buy and maintain (limited trading) 
portfolio of high quality, short duration, 
primarily corporates. 

Completion portfolio makes a payment through net 
income and bond maturities that bridges the gap 
between other managers and projected payment. 

Cash STIF account at custodial bank. Buffer in the event of any Liquidity shortfall/excess. 

Notes 
The sixth cash flow from the liquidity program for 2018 was completed on June 25 and produced a lower cash flow 
($453 thousand) than our actual benefit payments. Monthly cash flows were reduced by $1-1.5 mm monthly at the 
beginning of the year to reduce generating excess cash, which occurred during 2017. We have reviewed the projected 
cash flows through the end of 2018 as part of the annual rebalancing activity and determined that no further 
adjustments were required. 



 
 

2 
 

 

Cash Flow Structure 
The chart below shows the sources of cash flow for the next several years of CCCERA’s projected benefit payments.  

This table will change slightly as the model is tweaked and as the portfolios receive new rounds of funding each July 

as part of the Annual Funding Plan. 

 



 

MEMORANDUM 

_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

1355 Willow Way   Suite 221   Concord   CA    94520    925.521.3960   FAX: 925.521.3969      www.cccera.org 

Date: August 8, 2018    

To: CCCERA Board of Retirement 

From: Henry Gudino, Accounting Manager 

Subject: Review of 2018 CCCERA mid-year budget versus actual expense report 

_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Background 

Enclosed please find a Mid-Year Budget versus Actuals expense update report for the 2018 fiscal 
year from January 1 through June 30, 2018.  The 2018 Budget is presented as a total annual 
amount in order to compare with actual at mid-year.  The remaining budget dollars and 
percentages of budget remaining will allow the reader to compare and monitor how much is left 
for the remaining fiscal year.  The report is divided into three sections: Total CCCERA 
Combined expenses (p.1), followed by Total Administrative (p.2) and Total Non-Administrative 
expense sections (p.3). 

Administrative expenses include Executive, Compliance, Administration/ HR, Accounting, 
Information Technology, Benefits, and Member Services departments.  Non-Administrative 
expenses include Investments and Legal departments, and the Disaster Recovery program. 

For the mid-year status ended June 30, 2018; total CCCERA expenses amounted to $5,930,118 
of which $4,701,598 was Administrative and $1,254,913 was Non-Administrative.  The 
Administrative expenses when compared to the 2018 approved Administrative budget of 
$10,106,000 results in remaining budget of $5,404,402 or 53% of budget remaining at the 50% 
mid-year point. 

Section 31580.2 of the California Government Code sets a statutory limit for administrative 
expenses to be capped at 0.21% of the most current Actuarial Accrued Liability (AAL).  
Measured as of the latest valuation as of December 31, 2016, the AAL is $8,794,434,139 which 
results in a statutory limit of approximately $18.5 million.  The 2018 Administrative expenses 
are trending annually at $9.4 million which is 0.11% of the AAL and well under the limit. 

Recommendation 
This report is informational only.  No Board action is necessary at this time. 





2018

 Budget

2018

Mid-Year Actuals

$ (over)

 under

% (over)

 under

Personnel Services:

Salaries & Wages 4,388,200$        2,079,201$        2,308,999$        53%

Employee Benefits & Retirement 3,482,500 1,730,876 1,751,624 50%

Total Personnel Services 7,870,700 3,810,077 4,060,623 52%

Operational Expenses:

Professional Services

Audit Services 313,500 127,959 185,541 59%

Actuary - Benefit Statements 65,000 - 65,000 100%

Disability Hearing/ Medical Reviews 156,000 25,759 130,241 83%

Other Professional Services 3,600 732 2,868 80%

Total Professional Services 538,100 154,450 383,650 71%

Office Expenses:

Office Lease 380,200 188,655 191,545 50%

Telephone & Internet Services 49,600 27,853 21,747 44%

Equipment Lease & Maintenance 26,500 12,363 14,137 53%

Furniture & Equipment 9,500 3,603 5,897 62%

Office Supplies & Maintenance 72,800 25,024 47,776 66%

Printing & Postage 139,500 33,206 106,294 76%

Training & Education 152,600 43,577 109,023 71%

Travel & Transporation 129,700 50,502 79,198 61%

Insurance 260,000 152,452 107,548 41%

Total Office Expenses 1,220,400 537,235 683,165 56%

Information Technology Systems:

Support Service & Software Contracts 255,800 141,625 114,175 45%

Hardware & Equipment Maintenance 60,500 18,211 42,289 70%

Project Consulting 80,000 - 80,000 100%

Total IT Systems 396,300 159,836 236,464 60%

Assets Depreciation 80,500 40,000 40,500 50%

Total Administrative Expenses 10,106,000$   4,701,598$     5,404,402$     53%

CCCERA Administrative

FY2018 Budget vs Actual Expenses

page 2



2018

 Budget

2018

Mid-Year Actuals

$ (over)

 under

% (over)

 under

Personnel Services:

Salaries & Wages 1,458,400$        556,335$          902,065$          62%

Employee Benefits & Retirement 911,400 404,150 507,250 56%

Total Personnel Services 2,369,800 960,485 1,409,315 59%

Operational Expenses:

Professional Services

Fiduciary & General Legal Counsel 398,000 110,878 287,122 72%

Investment Legal Counsel 125,000 49,328 75,672 61%

Disabilities Legal Services 72,000 15,436 56,564 79%

Other Professional Services 1,000 898 102 10%

Total Professional Services 596,000 176,540 419,460 70%

Office Expenses:

Office Lease 53,300 26,393 26,907 50%

Telephone & Internet Services 12,100 - 12,100 100%

Furniture & Equipment 3,000 649 2,351 78%

Office Supplies & Maintenance 8,000 4,332 3,668 46%

Printing & Postage 1,500 51 1,449 97%

Training & Education 24,500 8,332 16,168 66%

Travel & Transporation 129,000 32,631 96,369 75%

Total Office Expenses 231,400 72,388 159,012 69%

Information Technology Systems:

Support Service & Software Contracts 160,400 32,672 127,728 80%

Hardware & Equipment Maintenance 8,000 328 7,672 96%

Project Consulting 5,000 - 5,000 100%

Total IT Systems 173,400 33,000 140,400 81%

Assets Depreciation 31,500 12,500 19,000 60%

Total Non-Administrative Expenses 3,402,100$     1,254,913$     2,147,187$     63%

CCCERA Non-Administrative

FY2018 Mid-Year Budget vs Actual Expenses

page 3


































	agenda 08.08.2018
	Item 4
	Item 5
	Item 9
	Item 10



